
 
 
 

RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL AGENDA 
 

Date: 
 

Wednesday, 28 July 2021 

Time: 
 

10.00 am 

Venue: 
 

Council Chamber, Moorlands House, Leek 

20 July 2021 
 

PART 1 

1. Apologies for absence, if any  

2. Notification of Substitute Members, if any  

3. Minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 3 - 8) 

4. Urgent items of Business, if any (24 hours notice to be provided to the Chairman)  

5. Declaration of Interests:  

 i. Disclosable Pecuniary Interests; 
ii. Other Interests. 

 

6. Questions to Portfolio Holders, if any  

7. 4th Quarter Financial, Procurement & Performance Review 2020/21 (Pages 9 - 56) 

8. Work Programme (Pages 57 - 58) 

 Any additional items to be added to the Work Programme:- 
i. Chairman’s items; 
ii. Members’ items. 

 

9. Exclusion of the Press and Public  

 The Chair to move:- 
 
“That, pursuant to Section 100A(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the 
public be excluded from the meeting in view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings whereby it is likely that confidential 
information as defined in Section 100A (3) of the Act would be disclosed to the 
public in breach of the obligation of confidence or exempt information as defined in 
Section 10 I (1) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act would be disclosed to the 
public by virtue of the Paragraphs indicated.” 
 

You can view the agenda 
online by using a smart 
phone camera and 
scanning the code below: 

 

Public Document Pack



10. Application for write off of non-recoverable debts (Pages 59 - 64) 

 (Paragraph 1 - Information relating to any individual. ) 
 

 
MARK TRILLO 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND MONITORING OFFICER 
 

Membership of Resources Overview & Scrutiny Panel 
Councillor G Heath (Chair) Councillor T Riley (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor C J S Atkins Councillor J Davies 
Councillor S Ellis Councillor E Fallows 
Councillor M Gledhill Councillor N Hawkins 
Councillor T Holmes Councillor B A Hughes 
Councillor A Hulme Councillor K J Jackson 
Councillor J T Jones Councillor L D Lea 
Councillor L A Malyon Councillor P Routledge 
Councillor D Shaw Councillor P Wilkinson 
Councillor N Yates  

 



1 
 

 

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL 
MEETING 

 

Minutes 
 

WEDNESDAY, 23 JUNE 2021 
 
PRESENT: Councillor G Heath (Chair)   
 
 Councillors C J S Atkins, B Cawley, E Fallows, T Hall, A Hart, 

N Hawkins, T Holmes, K Hoptroff, B A Hughes, K J Jackson, 
J T Jones, L A Malyon, J Porter, S E Ralphs MBE, T Riley, 
P Routledge, D Shaw L Swindlehurst and P Taylor 

  
 
IN ATTENDANCE: S Hampton Member and Community Services Officer 
 P Trafford Member & Community Services Officer 
 CHazeldene 

 
M Forrester 

Acting Executive Director (Finance and 
Customer Services) 
Democratic & Community Services Manager 

 
APOLOGIES: Councillors J Davies, M Gledhill, P Wilkinson and N Yates 
 

1 NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS, IF ANY 
 
Cllr. B Cawley attended as substitute for Cllr. N Yates. 
 

2 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Resources Overview & 
Scrutiny Panel held on 24 March 2021 be APPROVED as a correct record and 
signed by the Chair. 
 

3 URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS, IF ANY (24 HOURS NOTICE TO BE 
PROVIDED TO THE CHAIRMAN) 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

4 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS: 
 
There were no interests declared at this point in the meeting. However, Cllr. P 
Routledge later declared, during agenda item 6 (Call-in of the Delegated Decision on 
Community Orchards) that he was a member of the Woodland Trust. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Resources Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 23 June 2021 
 

2 
 

5 QUESTIONS TO PORTFOLIO HOLDERS, IF ANY 
 
Question from Councillor Gledhill: 
 
Q1. What is the Council’s policy on the use of bailiffs in relation to Council Tax 
matters? 
 
Response from Councillor Ralphs, Leader of the Council: 
 
“The Council has a statutory duty to undertake recovery action for non-payment of 
Council Tax in line with the Council Tax Administration and Enforcement Regulations 
1992 (as amended) and takes a firm but fair application of the legislation in order to 
maintain income receipts to fund essential front line services.  
Prior to Enforcement Agents being engaged, there are a number of steps which are 
taken.   These include reminder notices, final notices and summons.   At each of 
these stages, we encourage customers to make contact with the Council in order to 
discuss their Council Tax account and establish a payment arrangement.  During the 
Coronavirus pandemic, the Council issued an informal letter (prior to reminder 
notice) as an additional step with signposting to external agencies who can support 
with financial hardship, recognising the impact COVID-19 may have had on 
households.  The Council also provides options to pay Council Tax in instalments 
over 12 months (rather than 10) and a choice of three payment dates if paid via 
Direct Debit. 
If recovery gets to summons stage and a liability order is awarded at Court, this 
secures the debt and provides additional steps to take enforcement action.  Where 
possible, the Council explores the use of attachment of earnings/benefits – which 
results in a weekly reduction (amount in line with regulations based on amount 
earned) from salary/benefits.  At the point all other recovery options have been 
exhausted, the Council would then consider passing the account to Enforcement 
Agents.   However, where the Council is aware that the customer is vulnerable, 
further action is taken internally to avoid where possible, the account going to the 
Enforcement Agent.  However, if no other way of collecting the debt has been 
secured, it may be passed on as a separate upload and the Enforcement Agent 
would be informed of the possible vulnerability. 
 
Enforcement Agents operate in accordance with the Human Rights Act 1998, 
Equality Act 2010 and Taking Control of Goods Regulations 2014.  Even when an 
account is passed to Enforcement Agents, we request them to issue a ‘pre-
compliance’ letter – there is no requirement to issue this under regulation, but it 
provides an opportunity for the customer to make contact and agree an arrangement 
prior to any fees being added.   The Enforcement Agents are required to identify any 
vulnerabilities (which the Council may not have been aware of) and have specific 
welfare and safeguarding teams established and work alongside support 
organisations which provide debt advice.  Where vulnerable customers are identified 
Enforcement Agents would notify the Council and the account may be returned.         
 
The Council are looking at working more closely with the Citizens Advice Bureau 
(CAB) with a view to signing up to their Council Tax Protocol which encourages the 
Council, Enforcement Agencies and the CAB to work in partnership to support those 
in genuine financial hardship.  
Officers have provided presentations to Resources Committee previously in respect 
of the recovery process, but this could be added to the Committee work programme 
so a full update could be provided if Councillors feel this would be beneficial.” 
 Page 4



Resources Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 23 June 2021 
 

3 
 

Cllr. Gledhill was unable to attend the meeting, so Cllr. Atkins asked the following 
supplementary questions:- 

 How does the Council monitor bailiff actions in relation to the vulnerability of 
debtors from a financial and health aspect? Do we liaise at the 7-day letter 
stage? 

 Is there a threshold on the amount of a debt passed to bailiffs? How many 
cases are being dealt with by bailiffs and how does this compare with 
previous years? 

 
Cllr. Ralphs confirmed that bailiffs were used only as a last resort after all other 
efforts to recover the debt had failed. Bailiff behaviour and procedures were 
monitored, as was their Code of Conduct. Very few complaints were received and 
the authority was conscious of vulnerable people. 
Specific information would be provided in writing to Cllr. Gledhill as soon as possible 
and the matter was to be discussed at the next Group Leaders’ meeting. 
 

6 CALL-IN OF DELEGATED DECISION REF. 2021/01 - COMMUNITY 
ORCHARD SCHEME 
 
Cabinet members had considered a report which confirmed that during the late 
2020/21 planting season the Council piloted 7 orchards to test out elements of a 
scheme which was proposed for extension by a further 23 locations, with planting 
taking place in November / December 2021. A budget of £10,000 had been 
earmarked from within the existing Community Planning budget. 
 
The decision made was:- 
 
That the Community Orchards Scheme be approved. 
 
Following this decision, Call-in requests had been received from Councillors K 
Hoptroff, M Gledhill, B Cawley, L Swindlehurst, P Taylor, D Price, N Yates and C 
Atkins. 
 
The Call-in request confirmed the following principles of decision making which they 
believed had not been adhered to:- 
 

 Taking due regard of all relevant considerations and disregarding irrelevant 
considerations (“The policy is designated “community orchards”. There is no 
evidence that communities in which the initial orchards were placed have 
been consulted in their positioning. The manual in establishing orchards 
“Community Orchard Handbook (2008) lays out clearly the process in the 
establishment of orchards and the involvement of the community in clear 
steps including communicating objectives, timescales for tasks such as 
outreach, publicity, organising volunteers, planting and above all 
maintenance. There is no evidence that any work has been done in securing 
these objectives outlined in 7.9 of the cabinet paper”.); 

 Taken on the basis of due consideration (“The decision to move forward via a 
cabinet delegated decision (CDD) has also prevented councillors from 
discussing this report. This mechanism is usually reserved for matters of 
urgency”.); 
 
 

Page 5



Resources Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 23 June 2021 
 

4 
 

 A presumption in favour of openness (“Unfortunately in the pilot schemes a 
hallmark of the policy as operated since the start of the year has been the 
opposite of openness. Ward Councillors have not been informed of the siting 
of the orchards and have been presented with a fait accompli”.); 

 Clarity of aims and desired outcomes (“How will this approach lead to the 
desired outcome communicated in the July 2019 SMDC declaration on 
making the area carbon neutral by 2010? There is a lack of clearness or 
sense of purpose of where the planting of community orchards fits within the 
strategy”.). 

 
Members debated in detail the points contained in the delegated report and in the 
call-in, with key points being:- 
 

 The scheme centred around carbon offsetting rather than carbon reduction; 

 The scheme had been discussed previously both at SMDC meetings and at 
Parish Assembly. Parish Councils had also contributed to discussions, 
proposing sites. Also discussed with Haregate Community Centre; 

 Each orchard would contain between 15 – 40 fruit and nut trees, together with 
a variety of other trees and bushes; 

 Important to ensure that future maintenance of the orchards continues ‘when’ 
the initial volunteer impetus falters; 

 Engaged with Keele University to ensure that the Climate Change benefits of 
the scheme were quantifiable; 

 Orchard development was educational for children and encouraged healthy 
eating; 

 Details of the ongoing costs related to the scheme were needed. 
 
The matter was then put to a vote, indicated by a show of hands:- 
 
In favour of the Call-in: 
3 votes 
 
Against the Call-in: 
7 votes 
 
Abstentions 
None 
 
In accordance with the procedure for consideration of Call-ins, Cabinet would be 
asked to note or take account of concerns as it saw fit without holding up the 
implementation of the decision. 
 

7 WORK PROGRAMME 
 
Members requested that the following items be added to the Work Programme:- 
 

 Ongoing costs of the Community Orchards Scheme; 

 Installation of LED lighting within Moorlands House; 
 
RESOLVED – That the 2021/22 Work Programme be AGREED, subject to the 
addition of the above for a future meeting. 
 
 Page 6



Resources Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 23 June 2021 
 

5 
 

This was the last Resources O & S Panel to be attended by Claire Hazeldene, who 
was due to leave the authority in the near future. Claire introduced John Betts, the 
Interim Chief Finance Officer. 
 
Members thanked Claire for her work for the authority over the preceding 18 years 
and wished her well in her future career. 
 

8 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That, pursuant to Section 100A(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the 
public be excluded from the meeting in view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings whereby it is likely that confidential 
information as defined in Section 100A (3) of the Act would be disclosed to the public 
in breach of the obligation of confidence or exempt information as defined in Section 
100 I (1)  of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act would be disclosed to the public by 
virtue of the Paragraphs indicated. 
 

9 EXEMPT MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
RESOLVED – That the exempt minutes of the meeting of the Resources Overview & 
Scrutiny Panel held on 24 March 2021 be APPROVED as a correct record and 
signed by the Chair. 
 
 

The meeting closed at 11.15 am 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________Chairman ____________________Date 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



  

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 

Report to Resources Overview & Scrutiny Panel 
 

28th July 2021 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendices Attached 

 Appendix A (2020/21 – Fourth Quarter (Provisional Outturn (Financial Report) 

 Appendix B (2020/21 – Fourth Quarter (Procurement Report)  

 Appendix C (2020/21 – Fourth Quarter (Performance Report) 

 Appendix D (2020/21 – Fourth Quarter (Write Offs) - CONFIDENTIAL 
 

 
1. Reason for the Report  
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform members of the Council’s overall 

performance and financial position for the period ended 31st March (“Fourth 
Quarter 2020/21”); and 

 
2. Recommendations 

2.1 It is recommended that the Committee:  
 

 Note the Fourth Quarter 2020/21 financial, procurement and performance 
position detailed in Appendices A, B and C and summarised at 3.3 of this 
covering report. 

 Recommend for approval the allocation of the surplus on the General Fund 
Revenue Account to reserves as explained in Appendix A (paragraph 2.10) 

 Recommend for approval the proposal to carry forward unspent revenue budget 
as described in Appendix A (Paragraph 2.12) 

 Recommend for approval the proposals to carry forward unspent capital 
budget as set out in Appendix A (paragraph 5.6) 

 Recommend for approval the write offs set out in Appendix D  
 
 
 

TITLE: Fourth Quarter Financial, Procurement and 
Performance Review 2020/21 

 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER Cllr Sybil Ralphs – Council Leader 
  
CONTACT OFFICERS: Keith Pointon – Head of Finance 

Vanessa Higgins – Information Business 
Partner  

   
WARDS INVOLVED:  Non-Specific 

Page 9

Agenda Item 7



  

3. Executive Summary 
 
3.1 This report essentially summarises the Council’s financial, procurement and 

performance position after considering service activity up to the end of the Fourth 
Quarter (i.e. 31st March 2021).  
 

3.2 Detailed analysis is provided in Appendix A (Finance), Appendix B (Procurement) 
and Appendix C (Performance).  
 

3.3 The position can be summarised as follows: 
 

Subject Headline Reference 

Finance The Finance headlines for the Fourth Quarter are: 
Performance against Budget 

 At the Fourth Quarter stage the General Fund provisional outturn for 
2019/20 is an underspend of £7,315,520. (including £4,521,710 of 
s31 grants, in respect of Business Rates reliefs, received in advance 
to be applied in 2021/22) 

Efficiency Programme 

 At Quarter 4 £137,000 in savings have been achieved against the 
2020/21 revised efficiency target of £519,000 (General Fund).   

Capital Programme 

 The revised Capital Programme budget for 2020/21 is £3.08 million.  
The outturn for the year is £3.1million; a variance of £0.02 million. 

Treasury Management 

 Cash investments held at 31 March 2021 totalled £18.4 million. The 
Ascent loan currently stands at £14million and the debenture at 
£5million. 

 Council borrowing at 31 March 2021 totalled £15 million (£14million 
relates to the Ascent loan) 

 The Council’s net interest income receipts were £53,457 surplus 
above budget. 

Revenue Collection 

 98.17% of Council Tax was collected by 31 March 2021 compared to 
98.55% for the same period last year. 

 97.35% of Business Rates was collected by 31 March 2021 
compared with 99.3% for the same period last year. 

 At the end of the Fourth Quarter debt that was over 60 days old was 
£65,090 which compares with £70,729 at 31 March 2020 

Appendix A 

Procurement The Procurement headlines for the Fourth Quarter are: 

 9 procurement activities were completed  

 The Procurement forward plan includes 74 procurement activities for 
completion in 2021/22 (either SMDC only or joint) 

 At the 31 March 2021, 62% of procurement activity undertaken was 
on the forward plan and the Council paid 95% of its invoices within 
30 days during the year. 
 

Appendix B  

Performance The Performance headlines for the Fourth Quarter are: 

 70% of the key performance indicators met target (43% of which 
were better than the previous year) 

 The Council received 52 complaints and 100 compliments in the 
Fourth Quarter. 

 12 Projects were rated Green,19 grey, 1 Red, 0 Amber, and 3 Blue. 
 

Appendix C 

Page 10



  

 

4.       How this Report Links to Corporate Priorities  
 
4.1 The successful delivery of all corporate priorities is dependent upon the effective 

management of performance and financial resources, which is the subject of this 
report. 

 
5.       Options and Analysis 
 
5.1 Detailed Analysis is contained within the main body of the Report. 

 
6. Implications 
 

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 
None. 
 

6.2 Workforce 
None. 
 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Equality 
and Diversity policies. 
 

6.4 Financial Considerations 
There are substantial financial considerations contained throughout the 
report. 
 

6.5 Legal 
None. 
 

16.6 Sustainability 
None. 
 

6.7   External Consultation 
  None. 

 
6.8           Risk A    Risk  Assessment 

There are a number of risks to the financial position presented, which are 
identified and explained in the financial report attached at Appendix A. 

 
 
 

JOHN BETTS 
Interim Executive Director Finance and Revenues & Benefits 

 
Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Location Contact details 

 
Report appendices A-C 

 
Moorlands House 

 
Keith Pointon 
01538 395400 Ext. 4193 
Vanessa Higgins  
01538 395400 Ext. 4195 

 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

  
 

APPENDIX A 

 

 
 

2020/21 
 

Fourth Quarter 
(Provisional Outturn) 

 Financial  
Review 

 
  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 13



2 
 

1.      Background and Introduction 
 

1.1. In accordance with the Council’s Financial Procedure Rules and 
recommended good practice, a quarterly financial report is presented to 
members. This is the fourth and final report for 2020/21. 
 

1.2. The report summarises overall financial performance for 2020/21 with 
particular emphasis on the key sources of financial risk to the Council. 
Specific considerations are as follows: 

 

 General Fund Revenue Account (Section 2) – considers budgetary 
performance on the General Account by looking at variations in 
income and expenditure and the funding received by the Council.  

 

 Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme (Section 3) – considers 
progress in achieving the efficiency and rationalisation savings 
forecast for 2020/21.  

 

 Alliance Environmental Services (Section 4) – highlights the 
performance of the Council’s Joint Venture Company providing Waste 
and Fleet services. 

 

 Capital Programme (Section 5) – provides an update to Members on 
progress against the Council’s capital plan  

 

 Treasury Management (Section 6) – sets out the key statistics in 
terms of investments and borrowings; 

 

 Revenue Collection (Section 7) – considers progress-to-date in 
collecting the Council Tax, Business Rates and Sundry Debts. 

 

Page 14



3 
 

2. General Fund Revenue Account 
 

2.1. This section of the report considers the financial performance of the 
General Fund Revenue Account against budget by setting out variations 
in income and expenditure and funding received by the Council.  

 
 
 

Service (with staff*) 
2020/21 
Budget 

Provisional 
Outturn 
2020/21 

Variance 

Contribution 
to / (Use of) 
Earmarked 
Reserves 

Net 
Variance 

  £ £ £ £ £ 

Alliance Leadership Team 378,590 357,864 (20,526) - (20,526) 

Audit 98,620 94,970 (3,650) - (3,650) 

ICT 694,760 752,000 57,240 (25,000) 32,240 

Human Resources 52,360 52,440 80 - 80 

Member Services 308,800 259,609 (49,191) - (49,191) 

Property Services 767,920 1,280,655 512,733 - 512,733 

Benefits 163,570 184,009 20,439 (20,897) (458) 

Planning Applications 188,870 228,801 39,931 13,750 53,681 

Building Control 36,510 (21,311) (57,821) - (57,821) 

Customer Services 563,090 505,322 (57,768) - (57,768) 

Legal Services 237,880 210,101 (27,779) - (27,779) 

Electoral Services 97,790 53,864 (43,926) 26,047 (17,878) 

Licensing and Land Charges (210,960) (233,714) (22,754) - (22,754) 

Regeneration 232,340 268,755 36,415 (40,000) (3,585) 

Communities and Cultural 459,240 402,120 (57,120) - (57,120) 

Housing Strategy 43,110 (22,486) (65,596) 49,965 (15,630) 

Transformation 181,130 177,441 (3,689) - (3,689) 

Community Safety and Enforcement 151,050 105,922 (45,128) (2,500) (47,628) 

Finance Income & Procurement 357,310 495,710 138,400 - 138,400 

Corporate Finance* 1,692,150 140,131 (1,552,019) 167,000 (1,385,019) 

Waste Collection 2,154,150 1,986,246 (167,904) 100,368 (67,536) 

Street Scene 374,710 382,747 7,894 - 7,894 

Leisure Services 181,210 743,652 562,442 (41,776) 520,665 

Horticulture 595,190 539,996 (55,194) (7,096) (62,290) 

Environmental Health 454,900 334,347 (120,253) - (120,253) 

            

Net Total of Services 10,253,790 9,279,047 (974,743)   (754,881) 

            

Net Interest (401,170) (454,627) (53,457)   (53,457) 

  9,852,620 8,824,420 (1,028,200) 219,862 (808,338) 

Funding       

- external (10,107,180) (14,660,655) (4,553,475) 4,521,710 (31,765) 

- reserves contribution to/(from) 
 

        

     general contingency 276,010 276,010 -   - 

     use of carry forward from 19/20 (13,750) (13,750) -  - 

     earmarked (7,700) 219,862 227,562 (219,862) 7,700 

      

- covid19 support  (1,961,407) (1,961,407)  (1,961,407) 

        
Projected (Surplus)/Deficit - (7,315,520) (7,315,520) 4,521,710 (2,793,810) 

          
 
* In previous quarters Staff costs were budgeted and recorded in Finance & Procurement.  They were considered a 
corporate resource to be the main source of savings realised by the Authority’s Efficiency and Rationalisation 
Programme, However to show the true use of resources by individual services it is necessary to include the actual 
staff  costs incurred.  Therefore the Quarter Four provisional outturn position includes the actual staff costs (and 
matching budgets) at the service level. 

Page 15



4 
 

 

 

2.2. A revenue budget of £9,838,870 was set for 2020/21. In accordance with 
Financial Procedure Rules, the roll forward of £13,750 in unused budgets from 
2019/20 has been authorised. 

 

Horticulture (£13,750): in respect of the playground works to be completed in 
2020/21 

 This brings the 2020/21 budget to £9,852,620 
 

2.3. The table above shows how this budget has been allocated to services. 
 

2.4. The provisional outturn on the General Fund Revenue Account for the year is 
£2,537,100. This represents a projected surplus for the year of £7,315,520.   
 

2.5. There are seven areas of significant underspend (>£50,000): 
 

 Building Control (£57,821 underspend); While there has been a shortfall 
of some £30,000 in income generated this has been more than offset by a 
£90,000 saving against the historic staffing budget.   

 Customer Services (£57,768 underspend); savings have been 
generated across a number of budget heads owing to the change in 
working practices brought on by Covid-19.  The adoption of IT solutions  
for communication within and without the council has reduced travel and 
the demand for printing and postage.  

 Communities & Cultural (£57,120 underspend); Covid-19 has heavily 
impacted the service with initiatives and projects having to be postponed 
or cancelled. 

 Corporate Finance (£1,385,019 underspend): The most significant 
contributor to the underspend was the receipt of £740,000 as the Council’s 
share of undistributed balances when the Staffordshire Business Rates 
Pooling arrangement was wound up. Corporate Finance has also been the 
recipient of Government funding to support the administration costs 
incurred by the District issuing Covid 19 grants on their behalf. The time 
and effort involved was spread across the Authority’s workforce so the 
credits have been taken at the Corporate level, with £355,000 received in 
relation to Business Support Grants and £25,000 in regard to Self-
Isolation.  Performance against centrally held budgets for staff, inflation 
and efficiencies generated the remaining underspend. 

 Waste (£67,536 underspend); Covid-19 while driving up costs of the 
service, has disproportionately increased revenues generating this 
surplus.  Lockdowns with their increased reliance on home catering, 
takeaways and internet shopping significantly increased the volume of 
recyclables being collected and the income generated thereon. 

 Horticulture (£62,290 underspend); Higher income levels within the 
service have contributed £17,000 to the underspend.  The remainder is 
seen as the realisation of savings generated across the service from the 
adoption of a new delivery model in the year.  

 Environmental Health (£120,253 underspend); The response to Covid-
19 has significantly impacted the nature and volume of work carried out in 
this service, as it was involved in both Track and Trace and Enforcement.  

Page 16



5 
 

It did receive third party funding in 2020/21 towards these costs leaving 
the service with an in-year surplus.   

 

 
2.6. There are three areas of significant overspend (>£50,000): 

 
 

 Property (£512,733 overspend); Covid-19 has impacted this service 
significantly.  In particular Car Parking, where a significant reduction in 
income produced a net £366,000 shortfall and Public Conveniences where 
additional cleaning costs are primarily responsible for a £173,000 
overspend.   
 

 Finance Income and Procurement (£138,400 overspend); Covid-19 has 
significantly impacted the Recovery service with net income generated 
from summons activity some £158,000 below original expectations due to 
stalled recovery action.  Spending on external services to support billing 
processes has resulted in a £16,000 overspend in local taxation.  This was 
exacerbated to a degree by the heavy involvement of staff in administering 
the Covid-19 business support grants. These cost pressures were offset 
by savings across a number of budget headings including some £30,000 
against insurance costs.  

 

 Leisure (£520,665 overspend); The pandemic saw the closure and 
curtailment of leisure facilities and activities significantly impacting the 
council’s leisure contractor.  The additional in-year cost consequence to 
the authority of providing financial support to the contractor was £542,000.   

 
    

2.7. The £53,460 underspend on net interest costs is detailed in section 6. 
 

2.8. The level of funding for the year is £6,287,320 above that budgeted due to the 
following: 

 

 External Funding: (£4,553,475) 
 

 Business Rates Retention (£4,493,022 additional funding): 
o The Council received £4,521,710 in additional S31 grants in the year 

to compensate for the award of Extended Retail Relief of 100% 
(33% relief was forecast in the budget based on the best knowledge 
at the time; and Nursery Discount (not anticipated in the budget). 
Both of these increases to relief were announced by the government 
in response to the Covid-19 situation. Accounting practice dictates 
that these grants are treated as general fund revenue in the year. 
However, the extended reliefs impact the Collection Fund by 
increasing the deficit in the year, which will need to be distributed in 
future years, therefore this additional funding needs to be 
earmarked to accommodate this and cannot be used to support 
other services. 
 

o This is offset in relatively small part by an increase in the net levy 
payable on growth to the Staffordshire Business Rates Pool of 
£28,688 compared to the budgeted amount owing to a reduction in 
the provision of appeals from resolved national precedent cases and 

Page 17



6 
 

reduction in collectible rates on which appeals provision needs to be 
made. 

 

 Rural Services Delivery Grant (£60,453 unbudgeted funding) 
 
 
 

Use of Reserves (£227,562) 
 

 The original budget for 2020/21 assumed a contribution of £276,010 into 
general fund contingency and a £7,700 use of earmarked reserves 

 The outturn reported in table 2.1 assumes that the £276,010 contribution 
to contingency reserves included in the 2020/21 budget was made.   In 
practice however owing to the general fund surplus generated in the year 
the actual contribution to reserves was £7,577,780 

 The £219,862 reserve usage reported in table 2.1 reflects that instead of 
using the £7,700 in earmarked reserves the District was actually able to 
contribute £227,562 into them. 

 
 

Earmarked 
 

 ICT £25,000 use: monies drawn from reserve earmarked for IT 
infrastructure to cover costs of homeworking IT equipment. 
 

 Benefits £20,897 use: monies previously earmarked to address service 
budget pressures arising out of Housing Benefits reform are being used.  
 

 Planning Service £13,750 contribution: £6,250 used in year from the grant 
received from Government in 2019/20, to support the Council in protecting 
the Green Belt. £20,000 added to reserve earmarked to meet costs of 
maintaining Local Plan arising out of underspent in year budget.  

 

 Electoral Services £26,047 contribution: this is the net contribution into the 
Election Equalisation Reserve earmarked to meet costs of future elections. 

 

 Regeneration £40,000 use: An earmarked budget set up in 2019/20 in 
anticipation of additional logistical costs being required has been applied 
to support the District’s Markets.  

 

 Housing Strategy £49,965 contribution: Third party funds received in-year 
are being set aside to support homelessness initiatives that will run into 
future years. 

 

 Community Safety and Enforcement £2,500 use: A drawdown was made 
from a reserve to support domestic violence initiatives. 

 

 Corporate Finance £167,000 contribution; During 202021 £167,000 in 
Derelict Land Grants, held historically on the Balance Sheet, were taken 
as an in-year credit.   As the nature of this windfall was from previous 

Page 18



7 
 

infrastructure initiatives these monies have been set aside to support the 
District’s capital programme.. 

 

 Waste £100,368 contribution: The proceeds from selling a vehicle are 
credited to the owning service if £10,000 or under, but if more are returned 
to the capital pool to fund future acquisitions.  During 2020/21 individual 
sales below £10,000 generated £48,260 for the service.  This amount was 
considered significant enough to be returned to the capital pool by means 
of an earmarked reserve. 
The service also saw an in year reduction against budgeted vehicle 
maintenance costs of some £52,000 as it benefitted from having a younger 
fleet.  In the knowledge that these costs would increase as the fleet aged 
this money has been earmarked towards future year maintenance costs. 

 

 Leisure Services £41,776 use: £43,228 has been drawn down from the 
Authority’s Future Leisure reserve to fund the cost of consultations carried 
out in the year.  A small contribution of £1,452 was made into the reserve 
supporting the District’s involvement in the Together Active Staffordshire 
and Stoke-on-Trent initiative. 

 

 Horticulture £7,096 use: Works on Recreation Grounds and Open Spaces 
are part funded each year by drawing down on Section 106 monies 
previously received from Developers as part of their planning obligations.  
In 2020/21 £7,700 of these S106 monies were applied.  Movement against 
a number of small reserves set up to match longer term initiatives 
produced a net £600 contribution by the service.  

 

 

Covid 19 funding (£2,506,249) 
 

In response to the financial strain placed on local authorities by the pandemic 
the Government provided financial support in the form of grants towards 
exceptional costs and compensation for loss of income.  This support amounted 
to £2,506,249 made up of the amounts below: 

 
 Service Specific Costs Support: (£544,842) 
These grants were credited direct to Services and are included in their 

outturns for 2020/21 as reported in Table 2.1 
 

 Enforcement Grant (£39,516 funding): 
This funding, credited to Environmental Health, relates to the costs 
incurred enforcing lock down requirements in the District. 

 Track and Trace (£125,190 funding): 
This funding from the County Council, credited to Environmental 
Health, was towards the Council’s responsibilities for local track and 
trace. 

 Business Grants Administration (£355,300 funding): 
This additional grant, credited to Corporate Finance, relates to the 
costs incurred administering the allocation of grants to Covid 
impacted businesses in the District. 

 Isolation Grants Administration (£24,836 funding): 

Page 19



8 
 

This funding, credited to Corporate Finance, relates to the costs 
incurred administering the allocation of Self Isolation grants to Covid 
impacted individuals in the District. 
 
 

General Costs Support: (£1,961,407) 
This represents funding provided to support all the Authorities activities and is 

shown as Covid Funding in Table 2.1. 
 

 

 General Support (£1,279,832 funding): 
The Council has received these monies to support its general 
activities as impacted by the pandemic.  

 Loss of Income (£433,538 funding): 
Councils were granted the facility to claim for up to 75% of net 
losses against budget for income streams that satisfy set criteria.  
Based on a prudent interpretation of the guidance. 

 Council Tax Losses Support (£15,879 funding): 
Government made an in-year contribution against anticipated losses 
in Council Tax receipts. 

 Business Rates Losses Support (£232,158 funding): 
Government made an in-year contribution against anticipated losses 
in Business Rates receipts. 
 

General Fund Revenue Reserves       
2.9 The provisional outturn for the year on the General Fund Revenue Account was a 

£7,315,520 surplus. 
 
2.10   The surplus generated is calculated inclusive of the £262,260 contribution 

into general reserves budgeted for in 2020/21.  Therefore, the Authority’s 
contingency reserves have increased overall by £7,577,780. 

 
Of this a new Business Rates earmarked reserve of £4,521,710 is to be created 
to match S31 grant income received to the future needs of the Collection Fund in 
2021/22; and as detailed in the MTFP, £545,000 of windfall receipts in respect of 
the wind up of the original Staffordshire Business Rates Pool is to be placed in an 
earmarked reserve to be used to ‘support future projects around economic 
regeneration, business support and improving town centres as well as economic 
recovery post Covid19’ 

 
2.11  The Authority’s calculated minimum for its contingency reserve is £1,480,000.  

A review of the Authority’s reserves has been performed to identify areas where 
earmarking for future projects was considered prudent while maintaining a 
satisfactory level for contingency.  As a result the following moves into earmarked 
reserves are proposed; 
 

- £100,000 added to an earmarked reserve to fund future costs of the 

Covid-19 recovery programme 

- £100,000 added to an earmarked reserve set aside to support with 
the costs associated with the Future Leisure Provision project 
 

Page 20



9 
 

- £100,000 added to an earmarked reserve set aside to support with 
the delivery of Climate change related projects. 

 
- £75,000 used to create a new reserve earmarked to support partner 

organisations in short term financial difficulty 
 

- £500,000 added to an earmarked reserve to cover impairment costs 
associated with the review of the Ascent Housing LLP in partnership with 
Your Housing. 

 
- £150,000 added to an earmarked reserve set aside to support the digital 

strategy. 
 

- £218,000 to create a new Business Rates Pool Contingency Fund – 
earmarked reserve to fulfil a requirement under the establishment of the 
new Staffordshire Business Rates Pool 

 
- £50,000 used to create a new reserve earmarked to support costs 

associated with organisational development and the HR process. 
 
- £1,218,000 balance of the underspend has been added to Contingency 

 
 
 
 

2.12 In addition a balance of £450,000 has been moved from the obsolete 
Pensions   Reserve to Contingency in line with the 2021/22 Medium Term 
Financial Plan. 
 
 

2.13 The effect of these changes results in a balance on general fund reserves as 
at 31st March 2021 of £4.1million – which is £2.6million above new minimum 
contingency level.  The current Medium Term Financial Plan approved in 
February 2021 assumed a General Fund contingency balance of £3.48m at the 
end of 2020/21. The Council expects to use £756,410 of general contingency 
reserves over the next four years 2021/22 – 2024/25 as a result of the pressures 
being felt by the Council in the current Covid-19 situation. 
 

Carry Forward Request:- 
 

2.14 The following requests for carry forward have been received: 
 

 Planning Policy -  (£5,500): carry forward of unspent budget in respect of 
the production costs of the Local Plan document  to be completed in 
2020/21 

 Communities – (£8,660): carry forward of unspent budget in respect of the 
Councillors Initiative Fund to be used in 2021/22. 

 
 

 

3. Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme 
 

Page 21



10 
 

3.1. This section of the report considers the financial performance of the 
Council’s Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme in 2020/21. 
 

3.2. The Council’s Medium-Term Financial Plan (approved in February 2019) 
included the four-year (2017/18 – 2020/21) Efficiency and Rationalisation 
Strategy targeting savings of £3.14 million.  This was required to balance the 
forecast budget deficit position of £2.7m and also the carry forward of 
unachieved efficiencies from 2016/17 of £0.4m. 
 

3.3. The Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy is premised on the need to both 
reduce expenditure and increase income. The need to grow income is now 
more of a priority as the Council moves more towards being self-financing. 
The strategy has been developed with the underlying principles of protecting 
frontline service delivery. It is also intended that the strategy is a tool to 
enable the Council to ensure that its service spending is determined by the 
established priorities set out in the Corporate Plan. 
 

3.4. The 2020/21 budget was set in February 2020 with the assumption of 
£702,000 of savings in the year.  This figure comprised £1,175,000 from the 
original strategy reduced by an expected £473,000 over-achievement of 
savings against the 2019/20 target.  In the event a further £183,000 of 
savings were realised in quarter 4 of 2019/20, reducing the amount to be 
achieved in 2020/21 to £519,000.  The major focus of the savings 
programme in 2020/21 being on growth, income generation and major 
procurements. 
 

3.5. At the end of 2020.21, £137,000 of savings have been taken against the 
reduced 20/21 efficiency target. 
 

3.6. The current situation, regarding the on-going effect of the Covid-19 
pandemic, places into doubt some of the savings taken out of the budget 
during 2019/20; particularly those relating to the Leisure Services contract. 
This is being kept under review as the impact of the pandemic become 
clearer. This is being kept under review as the impact of the pandemic 
become clearer. The £382,000 shortfall in current year savings is as forecast 
in Quarter 3. In line with the current MTFP the unmet savings requirement 
will be carried forward into 2021/22. 

 

3.7. The Authority carries a longstanding reserve earmarked to support the 
Efficiency Strategy, which can be drawn on to offset one-off costs of 
delivering the efficiency programme, such as redundancy costs. The reserve 
currently stands at £493,000. It has not been necessary to draw on this 
reserve in previous years, so it remains intact to underwrite performance 
against future savings targets in the Efficiency Programme. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 22



11 
 

 

 

 

4. Alliance Environmental Services 
 

4.1. Alliance Environmental Services Ltd (AES) delivers waste, fleet, street 
cleansing and grounds maintenance services to both Staffordshire Moorlands 
District and High Peak Borough Councils. The Councils are shareholders of 
the company along with ANSA, which is a wholly owned subsidiary of 
Cheshire East Council.  
 

4.2. AES’s financial performance and impact on this Council’s budget is 
summarised below: 
 

2020-21 £ 

    
AES Contract budget 4,473,920 

    
Management fee 4,692,515 

Allocation of AES efficiency (246,988) 

Additional fee 38,726 

Covid-19 costs 191,577 

Fleet maintenance fund (52,109) 

Total management fee payable 4,623,721 

Allocation of Joint Operation profit (138,467) 

Net total 4,485,254 

    
Variance to budget 11,334 

 
4.3. The AES business plan for all services delivered to the Council during 

2020/21 included a budgeted management fee of £4,692,515. The Council’s 
share of the total AES revised efficiency target for 2020/21 of £246,988 is then 
repayable to the Council and is allocated against the management fee costs. 

 

4.4. The £38,726 additional fee relates to the increased pay award where 2.75% 
was settled but only 2% budgeted at the time; and a pressure on the basket of 
goods income rate on recycling. Additional costs of £191,577 were incurred as 
a result of the Covid-19 outbreak; these relate to provision of cleaning 
products, PPE and additional agency costs. 

 

4.5. It is acknowledged that new vehicles require less maintenance expenditure in 
the early years, but these costs will increase with a vehicle’s age, therefore 
AES has reimbursed the Council with the underspend on this budget of 
£52,109 to be held specifically in an earmarked reserve to be drawn down in 
future years when the burden becomes greater than the budgeted amount. 

 

4.6. Under accounting standards, AES’s financial performance is consolidated in to 
the Councils’ single entity statements as a ‘Joint Operation’ as opposed to 
separate group accounts being reported.  The profit is therefore apportioned 
between the two Councils and the respective services in line with the input of 
budgeted resources from each department. The Council’s share of the profit 

Page 23



12 
 

based on the draft outturn is £138,467 and is offset against the management 
fee costs. 

 

 

5.       Capital Programme  
 
5.1. This section of the report provides an update to members on the Council’s 

Capital Programme. 
 

5.2. The revised General Fund Capital Programme for 2020/21, as updated and 
approved in February, was set at £3,077,230  

 

5.3. The 2020/21 provisional outturn at March 2021 is summarised in the table 
below, with further detail provided at Annex A.  

 

 
 

5.4. T
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l 
i
n
c
u
rr
e
d 
C
a
pital Expenditure of £3,097,305 during the year against the revised budget of 
£3,077,230, representing an overspend of £20,075. This is made up of a 
number of variances which  reflects the impact of Capital Programme projects 
which are either behind schedule or have progressed quicker than expected 
with the most significant variance being: 

 

 Housing Standards (£154,143 overspend) Disabled Facilities grants 
completed during the final quarter exceeded the revised forecast. 
Overall delivery of the grant programme  is  however   below the 
annual Government support of  £1.7m received against expenditure of 
£0.9m. The funding is ringfenced and therefore no adjustment of carry 
forward is required. Offsetting the overspend was a small underspend 
against the Home Repairs grants programme of £7,547. 
 

 CCTV (£85,650 under spend) Replacement and upgrade of CCTV 
cameras has been delayed due to the supplier, prioritising emergency 

Service 
2020/21 

Approved 
Budget  

Out- Turn 
2020/21 

Variance  

  £ £ £ 

Housing Standards 790,000 944,143 154,143 

Property Services 775,640 727,796 (47,844) 

ICT 116,610 114,945 (1,665) 
Fleet Management  986,130 990,538 4,408 
CCTV 212,000 126,350 (85,650) 

Regeneration 26,850 23,334 (3,516) 

Horticulture 170,000 170,199 199 

Total 3,077,230 3,097,305 20,075 

Funding:-       

External  Contributions 795,000             949,143  154,143 

Capital Receipts 110,000               93,616  (16,384) 

Capital Reserves 557,000             615,006                58,006  

Earmarked Reserves  220,850             126,350  (94,500) 

Borrowing 1,394,380          1,313,191  (81,189) 

Total 3,077,230 3,097,305 20,075 

Page 24



13 
 

repairs only  during the pandemic. It is anticipated that the works will 
now go ahead during this year. The necessary carry forward of budget 
will be made  

 
5.5 Consequently, capital funding applied to the 2020/21 Capital programme 

is higher than  forecast in February, reflecting the incidence of timing of 
capital spend. 

 
5.6  As a result of the variances detailed above, approval is sought to 

increase the capital budgets for 2021/22 as shown in the table below:- 
 

  
6. Treasury Management 
 
6.1. This section of the report sets out the key treasury management statistics in 

relation to the Council’s investments and borrowings. This report comprises a 
high level treasury management summary.  The Audit and Accounts 
Committee receives detailed operational updates on treasury management. 

 

Investments 
 

6.2. Cash Investments at the end of the year were £18.4million. Interest earned on 
these investments totalled £43,800 and the average level of funds available 
for investment was £19.7million. 

 

6.3. The Council budgeted to receive £88,510 in investment income in 2020/21. 
After a small income on some local loans, there was an overall shortfall of 
£40,922 against this budget is due to falling interest rates following the Bank 
of England base rate reduction to 0.10% in March 2020. 

 
     Ascent Joint Venture 
 

6.4. The Council has a debenture of £5million paying 2% and loan of £14million 
paying an average 3.60% with Ascent, the joint venture company established 
to deliver affordable housing across the District. 

 
6.5. The investment income budget included £100,000 income from the debenture 

and £545,390 from the loan. The debenture interest was on target, while there 
was a small shortfall of £41,417 against the loan interest income budget due 

Capital Programme 'Carry Forwards' (2020/21 to 2021/22) 

Service Variance  
Carry forward  to 

2021/22 
Over/(Underspend)  

Over/(Underspend) 
Completed Projects 

  £ £ £ 

Housing Standards 154,143 (7,547) 161,690 
Property Services (47,844) (47,844) - 
ICT (1,665) (1,665) - 
Fleet Management  4,408 4,408 - 
CCTV (85,650) (85,650) - 
Regeneration (3,516) (3,516) - 
Horticulture 199 199 - 
Total 20,075 (141,615) 161,690 

Page 25



14 
 

to lower PWLB rates on the tranche roll dates that expected at budget setting 
stage.   
 

 

 

     Borrowing 
 

6.6. External debt was £15million at the end of the year, an increase of £5million 
from the opening external debt balance of £10million. £14milion funds the 
Ascent loan; and £1million other general fund capital expenditure. This 
approach was taken to ensure an appropriate level of liquidity was available 
during the uncertainty surrounding Covid expenditure and reduced revenue 
income. The Council budgeted to incur £332,730 in interest charges in 
2020/21. There was an underspend of £135,796 against the budget due to 
falling interest rates. 

 
 
7. Revenue Collection 

 
7.1. This section of the report details the outturn in collecting the Council Tax, 

Business Rates and Sundry Debt.\ 
 

7.2. The collection rates for the year were as follows: 
 

 Council Tax – 98.17% of Council Tax was collected, compared to 98.55% 
for the same period last year. 

o By the end of quarter 1 of the following financial year 2021-22 the 
collection rate for the year had improved to 98.69%. 
 

 Business Rates – 97.35% of Business Rates was collected, compared to 
99.30% for the same period last year. 

o By the end of quarter 1 of the following financial year 2021-22 the 
collection rate for the year had improved to 98.14%. 

 
7.3 At the end of Quarter Four the value of sundry debt that was over 60 days old 

was £65,090 which compares with £70,729 at 31st March 2020. 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Page 26



15 
 

ANNEX A 
 

Capital Programme Update 31st March 2021 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Capital Schemes 
2020/21 

Approved 
Budget  

Out- Turn 
2020/21 

Variance  

Carry 
Forward  to 

2021/22 
Over/(Under

spend)  

Over/(Under
spend) 

Completed 
Projects 

  £ £ £ £ £ 

Housing Standards           

Private Sector Grants 790,000 944,143 154,143       (7,547)        161,690  

Total Environmental Health       790,000        944,143     154,143        (7,547)        161,690  

Property Services           

Asset Management Plan  775,640 727,796 (47,844)     (47,844)                 -    

 Total Property 775,640       727,796    (47,844)      (47,844)                 -    

ICT 116,610 114,945 (1,665)       (1,665)                 -    

 Total ICT       116,610        114,945       (1,665)        (1,665)                 -    

 
          

Vehicle & Plant Purchase 986,130 990,538 4,408         4,408                 -    

Fleet Management        986,130        990,538         4,408          4,408                 -    

CCTV - Upgrade  212,000 126,350 (85,650)     (85,650)                 -    

CCTV       212,000        126,350     (85,650)      (85,650)                 -    

Regeneration           

Moorlands Partnership Grants 26,850 23,334 (3,516)       (3,516)                 -    

Total Regeneration         26,850          23,334       (3,516)        (3,516)                 -    

Horticulture           

Brough Park Improvements 170,000 170,199 199            199                 -    

Total Horticulture       170,000        170,199            199             199                 -    

            

Total Programme 3,077,230    3,097,305 20,075   (141,615)        161,690  

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
APPENDIX B 

 

 
 

2020/21 
 

Fourth Quarter 
 Procurement  

Review 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 29



 

1. Introduction 
 
1.1 A key element of the financial savings included in the Council’s Efficiency & 

Rationalisation Strategy is being met from Procurement activity which was agreed 
by Full Council in February 2017. 

 
1.2 The current Procurement Strategy was developed to ensure that its objectives 

linked closely with the Council’s overall strategic vision and aims and objectives.  
The key actions included, delivery of cashable savings, development of a 
professional Procurement unit, updated Procurement Rules to support 
transparency and the implementation of electronic tendering processes and 
procurement systems. 

 
1.3 The Procurement Strategy is now due for updating and is scheduled for 

presentation during 2021 initially as an Information Digest report to obtain Member 
feedback prior to final approval (this was anticipated during 2020, but delayed due 
to Covid-19 workload).  The revised strategy will focus on the following key 
objectives to support the aims of the Council’s Corporate plan: 

 

 Delivering Value for Money 

 Commercial focus and effective Contract Management 

 Maintaining Transparency and Ethical practices through effective leadership 

 Promoting Responsible and Sustainable Procurement  

 Supporting the Local Economy and Business Growth 

 Delivering Social Value (CSR) through our Contracts 

 
2. Fourth Quarter Completed Procurements 

2.1 The activity supported by the procurement function during the Fourth quarter 
January – March 2021 is summarised below: 

Third Quarter   High Value 

(> £181,000) 

Low Value    

(< £181,000) 

Total 

SMDC Only 0 3 3 

JOINT (SM/HP) 1 5 6 

TOTAL   9 

 

2.2 Annex A provides details of the 9 procurements exercises reviewed and completed 
during Quarter four. 

 
3. 2021/2022 Procurement Forward Plan 

 
3.1 The table below details the number of exercises which fall into either low or high 

value (profiled over full contract term) scheduled for completion or starting in 
2021/22. 

2021/22  

Activity 

High Value    

(> £181,000k) 

 Low Value   

(< £181,000k) 
Total 

SMDC 

 

3 33 36 

 
JOINT (SM/HP) 7 31 38 

TOTAL   74 
 

Page 30



 

In addition to the above, there are 170 listed entries brought forward from previous 
years (for review and completion for both HPBC and SMDC combined). It should be 
noted that the items listed are a combination of recurring contracts coming up to 
expiry, one offs, new items off contract and aggregate spend opportunities.  

3.2 Some of the more significant ‘high level’ procurement activity that is scheduled for 
delivery in 2020/21 includes:- 

 Facilities Management and Building Condition Surveys 

 Supporting delivery of the Fleet Replacement Strategy 

 Brough Park Tennis Courts  

 Cornhill West Industrial Units development 

 Gas and Electricity Supply renewal review 

 Cheadle Masterplan – Consultancy support 
 

 
4. Procurement Performance 

4.1 This section reports on the Council performance in terms of procurement activity 
and the payment of suppliers. 

 
4.2 Performance for the third quarter is highlighted below:- 

 

Performance Indicator Target 
Performance at 
31st March 2021 

% of Alliance Procurement 
Activity on Forward Plan 

65% 62% 

Annual contract spend as % 
of gross expenditure budget 

89% 92% 

% Of invoices paid within 30 
days 

96% 95% 

  

4.3 Invoice payments made within 30 days for the third quarter did not achieve target, 
the additional duties in relation to administering the business grant payments and 
reduced resources in the team over the summer due to long term sick absence has 
affected the performance on invoice payments. Although the position is recovered in 
terms of backlog, the impact of quarter two has affected the cumulative position 
over the year. 

 
4.4 For 2020/2021 additional new performance indicators have been introduced, these 

are currently being measured to establish targets to implement for 2021/2022. 
 

Performance Indicator 
Target TBC for 21/22 

(baseline to be established 20/21) 

Supplier (Creditor) spend within the local 
area as a % of total spend 

In progress: baseline being 
monitored 

% of Contracts awarded to local suppliers 
following submission of EOI* (over £5,000) 

In progress: Method review of 
source data extraction 

% of EOI* that come from businesses within 
the local area (over £5,000)  
 

In progress: Method review of 
source data extraction  

            *EOI – Expression of Interest   

  

Page 31



 

ANNEX A 

Fourth Quarter Procurement Activity Completed - SMDC 

Contract Title Brief contract 
description 

Recurring 
or One Off  

Service Area  Procedure  Award Detail  Term  
(years) 

 Total 
Contract 
Value £ 

Track Repairs – 
Biddulph Valley 
Way 

Resurfacing works – 
Whitemore section 

One Off Service 
Commissioning 

RFQ RGS n/a 8,050 

Replacement 
Board walk at 
Biddulph Grange 
County Park 

Replacement of Board 
Walk 

One Off Service 
Commissioning 

RFQ Faulkner 
Fencing 

n/a 2,800 

Viability 
Appraisal : 
Planning 
Application 

Planning Application 
independent Financial 
Viability Assessment 
 
(Planning Ref 
Redacted) 

One Off Development 
Control 

RFQ Keppie Masie n/a 2,350 

 

Fourth Quarter Procurement Activity Completed – JOINT (HPBC & SMDC) 

Contract Title Brief contract 
description 

Recurring 
or One Off  

Service Area  Procedure  Award Detail Term / 
Duration 

 
 

 Total 
Contract 
Value £     

IT Managed 
Service Contract 

Fully managed IT service 
contract for the Alliance 

Recurring Transformation CCS 
framework 
call off 
agreement 

Northgate Public 
Services  

3 
(+1+1) 

yrs 

2,895,000 

Rental on-site 
print units 

Central print and satellite 
print units – rental  

Recurring Customer 
Services 

Call off 
agreement 
framework 

Ricoh 5 yrs 51,652 

Personal 
Protective 
Equipment 
(PPE) inc. 
Cleaning 
materials 

Supply contract for PPE 
items and cleaning 
materials 
 
(2 contracts combined) 

Recurring Corporate 
Contract 

Open 
tender 

Accommodation 
Supplies 

1 
(1+1+1) 

yrs 

49,450 
(variable 

p/a) 

Security 
services 

Provision of security 
services at public 
meetings / Elections – As 
and when required 

Recurring Member 
services 

[not to be renewed as fixed term contract) 

Waste Skip hire  Provision for skip hires 
across High Peak and 
Staffordshire Moorlands 
for Direct Services / 
public buildings / 
Grounds  

Recurring Direct Services [not to be renewed as fixed term contract) 

 

Page 32



 

 

 

Staffs Moorlands Performance & Customer Feedback Report: 2020/21 (Q4 Outturn) 

  

P
age 33



43% 40%

17%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Better Weaker No Change

Trends 2020/21

Staffordshire Moorlands Q4 Summary  

The following report provides Councillors with an overview of performance at Staffs Moorlands for the period April 2020 to March 2021 in 

relation to the Council’s corporate plan priorities and the associated performance targets and projects. The report also provides an overview of 

the results from the Council’s customer feedback system in terms of how we handle and learn from complaints and the level of comments and 

compliments.  The council revised a small proportion of its 2020/21 targets last year in response to the assessed impact of the pandemic on 

operational performance.      

Performance Overview  

There are 63 targeted measures against which the council reports on a monthly, quarterly and annual basis. The remaining measures in the 

council’s performance framework are considered contextual in nature and feature in the Annual Report. The charts below show the results for 

both attainment and trend data in 2020/21; with 70% of all targets being met and 60% of all measures maintaining or improving on their 

performance compared to last year. The actions being taken to address the ‘off track’ measures are detailed at the end of this report. 

The report also provides an update on the progress of key projects that contribute to the priority actions outlined in the 2019-2023 Corporate 

Plan. The table below right explains the colour coding used to describe the current status of these projects / actions.  

Customer Feedback Overview  

There has been a further 17% reduction in complaints during 2020/21 compared to last year. There have been no repeat complaints and 

performance in handing complaints in 20 days has met its target. Further information about lessons learned is included in the report.    

 

 Off Track 

 In danger of going off Track 

 On Track 

 Not yet started / Decision 

awaited 

 Complete / Closed 

70%

24%

6%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Target Met Off Track N/A

Results 2020/21 

P
age 34



0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

Target Met Off Track

SM Aim 1: March Results 2020/21

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

Better Weaker No Change

SM Aim 1: March Trends 2020/21 

Aim 1: Help create a safer and healthier environment for our communities to live and work   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Performance against the objectives under Aim One is relatively strong at year-end and has seen a significant improvement at Staffs Moorlands 

with 82% of measures meeting target and only two measures (homelessness applications opened at prevent stage and implementation of the 

community safety action plan) off track.   

 

Celebrating Success:  

At the end of 2020/21, the following performance indicators outstripped their targets: 

✓ settled accommodation outcomes from homelessness duties  

✓ processing benefit new claims and change of circs 

✓ benefits accuracy 

✓ external sports funding secured  

✓ housing register applicants waiting 6+ months 

 

 

P
age 35



2019-2023 Corporate Plan Priority Actions – Progress Highlights 

Priority Actions Status Commentary – March 
Develop a strategy for further 
development of affordable and specialist 
housing 

 A report has been scheduled for the next Committee cycle. 

Complete the review of the CCTV system 
and implement the agreed 
recommendations 

 Camera replacement still in progress, this  has been  impacted by COVID restrictions. 

Develop and implement an indoor leisure 
facilities improvement plan focused on 
improving the health and well- being of 
residents   

 Progress is good, and the project remains on track for completion by the expected time. The 
energy audit contract has been awarded to Leisure Energy with usage data being gathered 
over the next two weeks, ahead of site audits commencing after that. Facility Planning Model 
runs have been completed and reports issued on 26/3 for review. Member working group 
meetings have been confirmed for 7th April (HP) and 14th April (SM) respectively. 

Develop and implement an outdoor 
leisure facilities improvement plan 
focused around the 'sports village' 
concept 

 Reports to Members due in the next committee cycle (May/June ), discussions around 
projects are ongoing. 

Develop a Private Sector Housing 
Strategy to improve conditions for 
homeowners and private tenants 

 Meeting held on 11th Feb. The first piece of work will be to update the evidence base to 
identify the issues that will feed into the strategy. The Private Sector Housing Renewal Policy  
will then be updated and added to the current suite of housing policies. Contents of the 
existing policies were reviewed during the meeting and initial areas of focus identified; this 
will evolve following review of the evidence base. Revision to DFG grants approved. 

Refresh the Council’s Communication 
Strategy in order to ensure that there is a 
more effective dialogue with residents  

 Information digest being prepared. 

Review the Council's community safety 
arrangements in order to maintain 
strong partnerships with community 
groups  

 Review of Community Safety Strategy to be completed by April 2021 along with proposals for 
the future.  Reports are ready in draft format and will be presented at the next committee 
cycle. 

Influencing Action: Reducing crime, the 
fear of crime and ASB 

P
age 36



Influencing Action: Combating illegal 
money lenders such as loan sharks 

Review the Sport and Physical Activity 
Strategy in order to integrate 
communities and sports clubs into the 
delivery of its objectives 

 Further to initial stakeholder discussions, wider stakeholder and community consultation is 
being planned as recommended in the recent SOPG reports produced by FMG. It is likely this 
consultation will include reference/questions regarding leisure facilities in order to join the 
strategy refresh and leisure transformation plan together.  

Implement the Covid-19 Community 
Recovery Plan 

 We have issued press releases about the ‘Eat out to help out' scheme encouraging people to 
support local businesses and continue to raise awareness via social media. Nearer the time, 
we will be promoting the dates that our local leisure facilities (pools, racquet sports etc) are 
due to re-open. A specific release about the work to the pool area in Brough Park Leisure 
Centre is being drafted. 
 

Influencing actions 
Ensuring effective health provision 
particularly for the elderly 
 
 

The SMDC Health Overview and Scrutiny Panel met on 3rd March 2021, at which Neil Carr, Chief 
Executive and Jennie Collier, Managing Director, Midlands Partnership NHS Foundation Trust, were 
present to update members on the temporary closure of Leek Minor Injuries Unit and the development 
of the Integrated Care Hub. The Panel was given assurance that the Minor Injuries unit would re-open by 
the end of June, as long as certain criteria was met. Should there be another surge in the number of 
patients requiring treatment for Covid, then staff may need to re-deployed again. 
Marcus Warnes, Accountable Officer and Tracey Shewan, Director of Communications and Corporate 
Services, North Staffordshire Clinical Commissioning Group also attended the meeting. The Panel was 
advised of the consultation for the Integrated Care Hub, decision making and the progress to date. 
Following discussion around the criteria used locally to identify adult carers to receive Covid-19 
vaccinations, it was agreed that a letter would be sent to the County Council as there were cases of 
carers that did not claim carers allowance experiencing difficulties making appointments to be 
vaccinated. A letter of thanks was also to be sent to all of the vaccination centres in the Moorlands. 

 

 

 

 

P
age 37



0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

Target Met Off Track N/A

SM Aim 2 : March Results 2020/21

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

Better Weaker No Change

SM Aim 2 : March Trends 2020/21

Aim 2: Meet financial challenges and provide value for money 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The council’s profile under Aim Two shows an improvement on last year’s figures. Issues that have been reported all year have contributed to 

the off track measures at year end including; invoice payments and FOI responses.        

 

Celebrating Success:     

At the end of 2020/21, the following performance indicators outstripped their targets: 

✓ sundry debt levels, income collection 

✓ sickness absence 

✓ IT systems and network availability 

✓ complaint handling and repeat complaints, customer interactions and portal accounts 

✓ social media followers 

✓ procurement activity on the forward plan 

✓ business unit occupancy 

 

P
age 38



2019-2023 Corporate Plan Priority Actions – Progress Highlights 

Priority Actions Status Commentary – March 
Develop and implement a plan to 
identify new and innovative ways of 
generating income 
 

 Individual project updates within the action: 
- Advertising/Sponsorship: On hold. 
- Fees & Charges: This has gone through the MTFP- charges are frozen for next year 
depending on activity levels during Covid recovery. 
- Empty properties: We are setting up a member group to pick the action plan back up. 
- Building Control: A report is going to cabinet 30/03.  
- Trade Waste: project on-hold to be picked up in 21/22 in post-Covid landscape. 

Continue to embed good 
information management practices 
through the ASSURED framework 

 COMPLETED. Information Governance Update Report produced for both Corporate Select 
and Resources Panel in November 2020. This completes this action as the report shows how 
both councils continue to embed good information management practices through the 
ASSURED framework. 

Refresh and implement the Asset 
Management Plan, including a 
review of public estate, and ensure 
adequate facilities management 
arrangements are in place 

 Individual project updates within the plan: 
- Asset Management Plan-Concertus will carry out some pilot stock condition surveys to 
make sure they collect data in a way that will work with the system and provide what we 
need in the way of reports.  The new system can be configured but any changes take time to 
be implemented. If the pilot is successful, they will be instructed to proceed with the full 
programme. Surveys will commence in May/June starting with the large buildings, results 
are expected back by August to be analysed .  
- Norse Contract Options -We are setting up 3rd working group for members, this will then 
go to Exec. No significant issues arose from the 2nd working group but there are some 
issues around timescales with elections. We need to tie legal discussions together and 
highlight the points that need shareholder agreement.  
-  Facilities Management Arrangements-Rolling arrangements with Vertas and DCC still in 
place. 

Develop an Access to Services 
Strategy to ensure that Council 
services are accessible to all 

 The strategy is in progress and is being developed in line with IT and Digital Strategies, 
suggested timescale is July 2021. Update report to corporate select, Member workshop to 
be set up which will feed into the strategy. 

Implement the Council’s Efficiency 
and Rationalisation Programme 
(This will focus on several projects 
including procurement, income 
generation, trading, advertising, and 
sponsorship, etc.) 

 Progress monitored quarterly - efficiency position incorporated into revised MTFP. 2021/22 
represents final year of current efficiency programme, plans are in place to address the 
delivery of the savings over the next life of the MTFP. Individual project updates within the 
action:  
- Parish Grants- Built into revised MTFP -This has been presented to the Parish assembly: we 
have agreed to carry out a consultation & issue letters on the  proposal. 

P
age 39



Priority Actions Status Commentary – March 
- Refresh Efficiency & Rationalisation programme- No new Efficiency Programme built into 
the revised MTFPs - we are focusing on delivery of outstanding efficiencies over the life of 
the current plan. Requirement for future savings programmes will be kept under review as 
part of future MTFP updates in the post-Covid landscape. 
- Hybrid mail- A report  identifying the savings will be provided at the end of financial year. 
This project will then be complete. 

Develop a new Organisational 
Development Strategy to ensure 
that our workforce is developed 
effectively  

 Camburg have completed the work around the strategy- the results are currently being 
reviewed . 

Develop a new procurement 
strategy with a focus on spending 
money locally 
 

 Meeting to be held on Thursday to release the Information Digest report. 

Develop a new ICT strategy to 
enhance and support the delivery of 
services 

 Information digest report is going to Members April 2021. The new IT contract has now 
been signed  for a duration of 5 years from 01/04. We are now working with Socitim to 
produce the IT/Digital Strategy. Individual project updates within the strategy:  
- Meetings AV equipment-no update. On hold due to Covid. 
- ILAP/Assure- reached testing stage but the software is not ready, on hold until ILAP is fit 
for purpose 
- Civica Pay- Deliverables currently on track with the project plan dates to deliver ahead of 
the national deadline  
- Civica Open Revenues- Project back on track now the annual billing process is complete, 
implementation planned for June  
- Env Health/Licencing- no roadmap for flare implementation, collective needs to be 
completed first. 
- Collective-  Still on track for June, awaiting Goss to finalise new  web forms 
- Committee Management- looking at production of the forward plan and  the quality of 
reports. Training to be implemented. 
- ICT upgrade- All users are now migrated to RDS2016, Microsoft Teams from a personal 
device has been successfully rolled out to all users .  There are future opportunities & 
benefits from a wider digital workspace yet to be fully realised & there will be outcomes 
from the ICT /  Digital Strategy that will rely on this platform.   
- Procurement Workflow and intranet upgrade- Infreemation are currently in the process of  
designing the workflow. 
 

P
age 40



Priority Actions Status Commentary – March 
Implement the Covid 19  Reinstating 
Service  Plan 

 We are continuing with strong, clear messaging encouraging people to comply with the 
guidelines around social distancing, hand hygiene and wearing face coverings – these 
measures feature heavily in all our communications via all channels. 
 

Implement the Covid-19 Financial 
Recovery Plan 

 
Back on recovery stage due to 2nd lockdown. 

Implement the Covid-19 Positive 
Legacy Plan 

 The Council has undertaken a review of the positive impact on all service areas to ensure 
that we retain and build on the improved working practices. The retention of agile working 
and access to flexible working arrangements, is currently being reviewed and new policies 
are currently being developed, along with identifying the benefits of reduced mileage, 
virtual access to meetings and training and the overall reduction in sickness. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 41



0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Target Met Off Track

SM Aim 3: March Results 2020/21 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Better Weaker No Change

SM Aim 3 : March Trends 2020/21 

Aim 3: Help create a strong economy by supporting further regeneration of towns and 

villages   

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

The Council has again achieved a high proportion of the targets set under Aim Three. 100% of major applications have been determined on 

time and the only off track areas are planning agent satisfaction rates and planning enforcement cases resolved within 13 weeks.      

 

Celebrating Success:     

At the end of 2020/21, the following performance indicators outstripped their targets: 

✓ major and minor planning applications processed on time 

✓ major and minor developments allowed on appeal 

✓ town centre vacancy rates 

✓ pre-application planning enquiries 

✓ priority 1 planning enforcement visits  

 

 

P
age 42



 

2019-2023 Corporate Plan Priority Actions – Progress Highlights 

Priority Actions Status Commentary – March 
Support the development of Cornhill 
and improved rail links 
 
 
 

 -Cornhill development (East): There will be no project movement until after project East is in 
delivery phrase. This will be at least 3 years. 
- Cornhill development (West): The planning balance needs to be re-assessed following the 
changes around the provision of the Marina. There may be misconception around the marina, 
concept,  a further meeting will be set up to consider alternative solutions.  
-  Rail projects  Leek-Stoke line – application for Ideas fund (re-connecting railways) to be 
submitted by 5th March. SMDC is accountable body. If successful will need to set up project 
board (including network rail, stoke city council, MPs offices) to oversee appointment of 
consultants. Meir station has model and specification which can be replicated. 
- Leekbrook heritage railway extension – there is strong likelihood that £1.4m of EARFD 
funding will be lost – as CVR are not in a financial position to co-fund remaining 20% unless 
timescale for delivery can be extended. It is unlikely that this will be permitted as EU funding 
but position unknown -  clarification being sought from RPA. Two emergency applications to 
Heritage Lottery fund have been submitted in January/Feb with SMDC help. The first for the 
open scheme (which funds works to re-open April-June 21); and a second retrospective 
application for works to re-open (August-December 20). Outcome of both still pending. 

Influencing Action - Support the 
Churnet Valley Railway with their 
plans to bring trains back to Leek 

Support the development of the 
former Churnet Works site, Leek 

 No update. 

Develop and implement plans to 
extend the public market operations  

 Leek Market Hall - Options appraisal received from Quarterbridge. Public consultation on 
shortlisted market hall options on hold. Report to be presented to Cabinet May/June 21.                                                                             
Moorlands Market Operations - draft report in progress - awaiting financial information. 

Adopt a new Local Plan  Action Completed. The Staffordshire Moorlands Local Plan was adopted by full council in 
September 2020. 

Develop a master plan for bringing 
redundant mills back into use 

 Report being prepared for March/June cycle to include summary of previous studies with 
recommendation that commercial demand assessment is undertaken to guide project 
development.  Report scheduled for next cycle with background for each Mill. We will 
correspond with the  Mill owners to understand their intentions. 

Implement the Council’s growth 
strategy to bring about the 
regeneration of towns and rural 
communities 
 

 Individual project updates within the strategy:                                                            
- Biddulph Wharf Rd masterplan- Enquiry has been received from the land agent on behalf of 
landowner. A meeting will  be organised to discuss bringing the parcel of land forward for 
development - access would require agreement from the adjacent landowner.  Further work 
to be agreed to explore alternative access to wider site.   

P
age 43



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

- Investment & Acquisition strategy- No update . 
- Blythe Vale- Draft project specification to be revised to incorporate St Modwen phase 2 
development proposals & possible levelling up submission . Pre app meeting  held with St 
Modwens re stage 2.   
- Cheadle town centre masterplan - Stakeholder Panel meeting was held 26th February.  
Workshop facilitated by the Consultation Institute held 17th March. Two alternative uses for 
town centre sites emerged from the workshop: Tourism hub at Tape Street car park and 
Health hub at Royal Walk.  A meeting will be held with Cushman & Wakefield to consider 
option appraisal to enable public consultation. The panel will meet again after the election. 4 
have been shortlisted  for public consultation, we await confirmation for the One Public Estate 
bid. Taskforce have submitted a report but we have requested clarification around what they 
are recommending and the products they are offering as this is unclear. Taskforce report to be 
circulated. 

 
Influencing Action - Expand the 
Growth Deal Partnership to provide 
inward investment 

Develop a Tourism Strategy to 
maximise the positive impact to our 
communities 

 In progress. 

Implement the Covid-19 Economic 
Recovery Plan 

 We have issued press releases about the ‘Eat out to help out' scheme encouraging people to 
support local businesses and continue to raise awareness via social media. We promoted the 
dates that our local leisure facilities (pools, racquet sports etc) re-opened. A specific release 
about the work to the pool area in Brough Park Leisure Centre was issued. 
Business newsletters complete, addition to a new newsletter to be developed considering new 
funding.    

Influencing Actions                
Provide bus services which connect 
our villages with our three market 
towns for services, shopping, and 
leisure 

Staffordshire County Council have been successful in a bid to the Rural Mobility Fund to support demand 
responsive transport projects in rural areas. The funding will be used to extend and enhance the 
Moorlands Connect service over the next four years, linking in directly with the scheduled local bus 
services at interchange points in the area to enable onward travel. There will be three buses with journeys 
available from 7am to 7pm Monday to Friday and from 8am to 6pm Saturdays. A service on summer 
Sundays will also be starting from next April. Full details of the funding bid can be found here - 
Staffordshire Moorlands - Rural Mobility Fund - Staffordshire County Council 
 
The new service will commence on the 2nd September 2021. A survey is currently running and has been 
shared with the District Council, all the Parish Councils in the operating area, schools in the area, Leek and 
Buxton College, the local bus service providers and the Peak District National Park. 
 
 

P
age 44

https://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/Transport/transportplanning/Funding-bids/Staffordshire-Moorlands-Demand-Responsive-Transport-DRT.aspx


Improve access and traffic flows to 
our town centre 

Continued liaison with Development Services and SCC regarding new development sites & key projects 
including Cheadle Town Centre masterplan and Blythe Vale. Projects now being considered for possible 
submission to the Levelling up fund - in discussion with SCC and MP.  'Long list' of projects identified as 
part of Green Infrastructure plan. Bid submitted with support from Stoke-on-Trent City Council, to the 
Department of Transport’s ‘Restoring Your Railway - Ideas Fund’ for a feasibility study for a Stoke-Leek 
Railway. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 45



0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Target Met Off Track

SM Aim 4: March Results 2020/21

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Better Weaker No Change

SM Aim 4 : March Trends 2020/21

 

Aim 4: Protect and Improve the Environment 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

The council’s profile under Aim Four is the lowest across the Corporate Plan at year end but is against a smaller basket of indicators. The 

performance indicator measuring the kg of residual waste is ‘off track’ at year end (linked to changing behaviours during the pandemic) and 

the environmental health measures linked to inspections have also been negatively affected by the lockdown.  Fly tipping is now a contextual 

measure, but the 2020/21 data reveals significant increases compared to last year. This is believed to be a national issue and is being 

addressed through a comms strategy in addition to ongoing enforcement activity.              

Celebrating Success:     

At the end of 2020/21, the following performance indicators outstripped their targets: 

✓ missed bins 

✓ paper consumption,  

✓ community clean-ups 

✓ street cleanliness 

 

P
age 46



 

2019-2023 Corporate Plan Priority Actions – Progress Highlights 

Priority Actions  Status Commentary – March 
Successfully deliver Phase 3 of the 
transfer of services to Alliance 
Environmental Services Ltd, to 
deliver waste, streets, and ground 
maintenance services on behalf of 
the Council in order to achieve 
improved performance and value for 
money outcomes. 

 COMPLETED 
Phase 3 (streets and ground maintenance) transfer completed 1st April 2020. 
Awaiting return of IT equipment. Closure/lessons learnt report has been provided. 
Project completed. 

Identify and implement an approach 
to reduce the cost of country parks 

 We have made progress with Stoke Council- they have produced an enabling report 
giving permission in principle for the transfer. We need to understand the liabilities, but 
things are moving, there are still a lot of issues to sort out. Costs etc will have reviewed. 

Develop a plan to improve Brough 
Park and John Hall Gardens 
 

 Individual project updates within the plan: 
-  Play Strategy- This will form part of the wider Parks Strategy; a review of existing play 
areas will be undertaken.SM project yet to commence. 
- Brough Park Improvement plan Play phase of the project is progressing with wetpour 
being installed this week. There has been a short delay in the project due to the supply of 
tarmac paint being delayed. Play/MUGA phase is currently being delivered with tender 
for Tennis Court refurb currently in development. Final pieces/painting are going in and 
we are  hoping to complete this week, we may go a few days over. Next steps are the 
tennis court refurbishment & path works/ lake/link with John Hall Gardens.  
- Tean Road, Cheadle Improvement plan- Awaiting update from Cheadle Town Council as 
to their aspirations. We have received no communication from CTC as was promised 
after their December meeting. 

Develop a climate change strategy & 
an action plan of response to a 
declared climate emergency 

 A report will be going to the next round of meetings. Work is progressing in the  
background for part 1 of the action plan. 

Review the Council's waste and 
recycling arrangements to increase 
recycling and to respond to the 
emerging national strategy 

 On hold- Await consultation and communications from the Government. TEEP has not 
started. 

P
age 47



Priority Actions  Status Commentary – March 
Influencing Action- Provide waste 
and recycling centres across the 
district 

Review the Environmental 
Enforcement Policy in order to take 
steps to further reduce 
environmental crime 

 Policies to be reviewed and updated in the next 12 months. Working group to be set up 
to discuss to agree the approach. 

Develop a new Parking Strategy to 
ensure that our car parks meet the 
needs of residents and visitors 

 Individual project updates within the strategy: 
-Parking strategy - The  findings will be reported by the consultants at the beginning of 
April and a meeting will be arranged to discuss. 
-Pay & Display machines - This is included in the capital programme for next year. We 
need the  bigger picture/full strategy  to make the final decisions. Influencing Action - The provision of 

accessible on street parking 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 48



P
age 49



 

 

P
age 50



 

Areas for improvement: 2020/2021 

Measure of Success (PI)  Aim / Objective Service Lead 
Target 

2020/21 

2020/21 
Year End 

Result 

Head of Service Commentary (reasons for 
performance / SMART actions to improve) 

% of initial homelessness 

applications opened at the 

prevention and relief duty 

stages 

Aim 1: Increased supply of 
good quality affordable 

homes 

Head of Housing 
Services 

60% 
prevention 

48% 

prevention 

52% relief 

Off track % is improving as lockdown restrictions 

ease 

Delivery of the Community 

Safety Partnership Plan: % 

actions delivered to 

timescale 

Aim 1: Effective support 
of community safety 

arrangements including 
CCTV 

Head of Democratic 
and Community 

Services 

100% 20% Delivery of the plan has been affected by the 

impact of Covid 19 

% invoices paid in line with 

terms of contract 

Aim 2: Effective use of 
financial and other 

resources to ensure value 
for money 

 

Head of Finance 96%  95% Operational output has been directly affected by 

additional activities that have been absorbed by 

the Creditors function to facilitate Covid-19 

Business and Self Isolation support payments 

from April 2020. This has been an increased 

demand on capacity within the team which was 

already working on reduced resources due to a 

full-time member on long term sick leave 

throughout quarter two. In addition there has 

been a noticeable increase in supplier invoices 

over recent weeks as front-line services step up 

recovery of business operations which we are 

currently working through to facilitate payments 

under the 30 day target.  We are making use of all 

available options, including external and internal 

communication channels to ensure that 

payments are not delayed, to which we aim to 

make a noticeable improvement on the current 

position going forward. 

P
age 51



Measure of Success (PI)  Aim / Objective Service Lead 
Target 

2020/21 

2020/21 
Year End 

Result 

Head of Service Commentary (reasons for 
performance / SMART actions to improve) 

% of corporate efficiency 

savings met 

50% of target 
 

26%  The savings achieved in year were affected by the 

Covid pandemic which reduced the scope. This 

was recognised in the revised MTFP approved in 

February 2021. The shortfall is carried forward 

into 2021/22 

Income variance to budget Net Budget 
+/- 25% 
variance 

 

63%  The additional Government funding received in 

support of the extended business rates relief 

scheme put in place for 2021/22, gave rise to 

significant s31 grants being received in 2020/21 

to be used to offset the shortfall in BR income 

which will be suffered in 2021/22. These 

additional grants show as technical income in the 

year but are earmarked for use in 2021/22 

FOI requests: % responded 

to within statutory time 

frame (include numbers in 

commentary) 

Aim 2: Ensure our services 

are easily available to all 

our residents in the 

appropriate channels and 

provided 'right first time 

Head of Legal and 
Elections 

95% 72% 
(455/633) 

Response times have been affected due to the 

impact of Covid 19 on staff resources 

Website Quality: Socitm 

Better Connected 

assessment 

Aim 2: Ensure our services 

are easily available to all 

our residents in the 

appropriate channels and 

provided 'right first time 

Head of OD and 
Transformation 

4 stars 3 stars The Assessment process is subjective to the 

individual assessors. An alternative measure will 

be used next year 

P
age 52



Measure of Success (PI)  Aim / Objective Service Lead 
Target 

2020/21 

2020/21 
Year End 

Result 

Head of Service Commentary (reasons for 
performance / SMART actions to improve) 

Agent satisfaction with the 

Planning Service 

Aim 3: High quality 

development and building 

control with an open for 

business approach 

Head of 
Development 

Services 

80% 56% Staff shortage within the team has meant that 

workloads have increased significantly this year 

along with the backlog of applications. This has 

also been exacerbated by the pandemic with site 

visits not being undertaken during the initial 

lockdown. This has led to a decrease in customer 

satisfaction . Also, officers have been focusing on 

delivering against Government performance 

targets on planning application turn-around time 

and as a result customer service has suffered. The 

vacant posts have now been filled and new 

officers will start in May and June. This will allow 

us to focus on the backlog and improving 

customer care P
age 53



Measure of Success (PI)  Aim / Objective Service Lead 
Target 

2020/21 

2020/21 
Year End 

Result 

Head of Service Commentary (reasons for 
performance / SMART actions to improve) 

% of planning enforcement 

cases resolved in 13 weeks 

80% 46% The last 12 months have seen  a big increase in 

enforcement cases as a result of people spending 

more time at home and submitting enforcement 

complaints about work being carried out in their 

area. Site visits were not undertaken in the initial 

part of the lockdown, and internal visits are still 

not being carried out unless absolutely essential 

which also slowed resolution times. We have also 

had a number of instances of staff sickness in the 

team and another officer partially seconded to 

the planning applications team to cover for 

vacancies and bolster resources there to meet 

Government targets. We have brought an 

additional member of staff into the team in 

January 2021, but he has taken time to train and 

we are now only feeling the full benefit. Once the 

planning applications team is up to full strength 

more resources can be allocated to enforcement. 

In addition, the easing of lockdown should result 

in fewer complaints and more site visits being 

undertaken.  

KG's of residual waste per 

household. 

Aim 4: Effective recycling 

and waste management 

Head of Service 
Commissioning 

385kg 405kg  Results are awaiting external verification. Waste 

tonnages collected by AES in 2020-21 are 

estimated to be 13% higher (2340 tonnes) than in 

2019-20, we assume this is linked to the Covid 

pandemic and changing behaviours. 

Number of pest control 

contracts  

Aim 4: Provision of high-

quality public amenities, 

clean streets and 

Head of 
Environmental 

Services  

54 50 We currently have 50 Contracts at SMDC, off 

track due to COVID-19  

P
age 54



Measure of Success (PI)  Aim / Objective Service Lead 
Target 

2020/21 

2020/21 
Year End 

Result 

Head of Service Commentary (reasons for 
performance / SMART actions to improve) 

% of food premises 

compliant with the Food 

Standards Agency criteria ( 

plus numbers as context) 

environmental health 95% 76% This is due to the number of premises that could 

not be assessed . Premises that are not inspected 

have to classified as non-compliant as they have 

not been risk rated against the criteria and they 

have not received an official physical inspection 

this is needed to be able to rate them consistently 

against the brand standard and the food safety 

legislation 

% of routine permitted 

process premises inspected  

75% 60% Targets have not been achieved due to COVID-19 

restrictions 

Private water supplies - % of 

sampling programme 

completed 

75% 60% Targets have not been achieved due to COVID-19 

restrictions 

Pollution measures - air 

quality: % compliance 

against national reporting 

requirements in relation to 

air quality 

Aim 4: Meeting the 

challenges of climate 

change 

100% 90% Targets have not been achieved due to COVID-19 

restrictions 

  

 For a full list of all performance measures and the Q4 results please visit the Performance Management page on the Intranet or click on this link.  

 

P
age 55

https://hpbc.alliance-online.org/system/files/documents/attachments/staffs_moorlands_q4_2020-21_2.pdf


T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Resources Overview and Scrutiny Panel  
Work Programme 2021/22 

Date Item Contact Officer 
23 June 2021   

 Community Orchards Call-In  M Forrester 

   

28 July 2021   

 4th Quarter 2019/20 Procurement, Performance & Financial Review J Betts 

22 Sept 2021   

 Local Tax Reduction Scheme Review & Focus on UC implications J Betts 

 Fleet Procurement Strategy N Kemp 

TBC   

 Empty Property Strategy (including initiatives and grants for these to come 
back into operation 

A Stokes 

 Procurement Strategy J Betts 

 Staff Pay Grade Review A Stokes 

 Review of Equality in Delivery of Services L Vernon 

 Organisational Development Strategy T Cooper 

 Joint Venture Partnership to Deliver Facilities Management Services N Rodgers 

 Ongoing costs of the Community Orchards Scheme D Smith 

 Installation of LED lighting within Moorlands House K Webster 

P
age 57

A
genda Item

 8



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 59

Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting
	7 4th Quarter Financial, Procurement & Performance Review 2020/21
	Appendix A for 4th Quarter Financial, Procurement & Performance Review 2020/21
	Appendix B for 4th Quarter Financial, Procurement & Performance Review 2020/21
	Appendix C for 4th Quarter Financial, Procurement & Performance Review 2020/21

	8 Work Programme
	10 Application for write off of non-recoverable debts

